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FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA . - i
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

]

CRIMINAL NO. 2:19¢r -} [

)
)
V. )
)
HOUMAN MOTII, ) 18 U.S.C. § 1347
) Health Care Fraud
Defendant. ) (Count 1)
)
) I8 U.S.C. § 982(a)(7)
) Forfeiture
INFORMATION
COUNT ONE

THE UNITE-D STATES ATTORNEY CHARGES THAT:

During the period from in or about April 2015 through April 2017, in the Eastern District
of Virginia, HOUMAN MOTII, the defendant, and others known and unknown, knowingly and
willfully executed and attempted to execute a scheme and artifice to defraud Medicare and
TRICARE, health care benefit programs as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section
24(b), and to obtain, by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and
promises, in connection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits, items, and
services, by submitting and causing to be submitted fraudulent claims for ambulance
transportation, which scheme and artifice, and the execution thereof, were in substance ag
follows:

I. At all material times, HOUMAN MOTII owned and operated Swift Medical
Transport, LLC (S wift), a business located in Norfolk, Virginia, that was authorized to provide
non-emergency Basic Life Support (BLS) ambulance transport services for Medicare and

TRICARE beneficiaries.
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2. In order to function as an Emergency Medical Service (“EMS”) agency in the
Commonwealth of Virginia, Swift must employ Emergency Medical Technicians (EMTs) who
hold a valid certification as issued by the commissioner of the Virginia Department of Health
(the commissioner).

3. Aperson holding valid EMS certification from another state or a recognized EMS
certifying body with which Virginia has a formal written agreement of reciprocity or possessing
a National Registry certification at the EMR, EMT, Advanced EMT, Intermediate 99 or
Paramedic level shall apply to the commissioner for reciprocity upon demonstration of Virginia
residency, Virginia EMS agency affiliation, or a recognized need for Virginia EMS certification.

4. Medicare requires BLS ambulances to be staffed by at least two people who meet
the requirements of state and local laws where the services are being furnished and where, at
least one of whom must (1) be certified at a minimum as an EMT-Basic by the state or local
authority where the services are being furnished and (2) be legally authorized to operate all
lifesaving and life-sustaining equipment on board the vehicle.

5. TRICARE requires BLS ambulances to be staffed as state and local regulations
require as well as according to Medicare guidelines.

6. The Virginia Office of Emergency Medical Services (V. AOEMS) requires a
ground ambulance transport be manned with a minimum of two persons: an operator and an
attendant-in-charge (“AIC”). An operator (aka the driver) shall at a minimum possess a valid
motor vehicle operator's permit issued by Virginia or another state and have successfully
completed an approved Emergency Vehicle Operator's Course (“EVOC”) training course or an
equivalent. An AIC is the certified or licensed person who is qualified and designated to be

primarily responsible for the provision of emergency medical care. During a BLS transport, the
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AIC must be certified as an EMT-Basic or an equivalent approved by the VAOEMS. During
transportation, the patient shall be attended in the patient compartment of the vehicle by the
required AIC.

1. The object of the scheme and artifice devised and executed by the defendant was
to obtain health care benefit payments from Medicare and TRICARE to which the defendant was
not entitled, by submitting and causing to be submitted false, fraudulent and fictitious claims to
Medicare and TRICARE for BLS ambulance transports.

8. It was a part of said fraudulent billing scheme that the defendant submitted and
caused to be submitted to Medicare and TRICARE claims for payment representing that Swift
provided BLS ambulance transports that were staffed with a licensed operator and AIC. In truth
and fact, as the defendant knew, the ambulance transports did not have a licensed operator and/or
AIC.

9. It was a part of said fraudulent billing scheme that the defendant prepared and
submitted, and caused to be prepared and submitted to Medicare and TRICARE numerous false
and fraudulent claims mjsrepr_esenting that BLS ambulance transports were staffed with a
licensed operator and AIC,

10.  As aresult of this fraudulent scheme and artifice, the defendant obtained health
care benefit payments from ‘Medicare and TRICARE in the approximate amount of $62,854.53,
to which he was not entitled.

(In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347.)
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FORFEITURE
THE UNITED STATES ATTORNEY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Defendant HOUMAN MOTTIL, if convicted of the violation alleged in Count One,
shall forfeit to the United States, as part of the sentencing pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal
Procedure 32.2, any property, real or personal, that constitutes or is derived, directly or
indirectly, from gross proceeds traceable to the commission of the violation.

2. If any property that is subject to forfeiture above, as a result of any act or
omission of the defendant, (a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence, (b) h;ls been
transferred to, sold to, or deposited with a third party, (c) has been placed beyond the Jurisdiction
of the Court, (d) has been substantially diminished in value, or (¢) has been commingled with
other property that cannot be divided without difficulty, it is the intention of the United States to
seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendant, as subject to forfeiture under Title 21,
United States Code, Section 853(p).

3, The property subject to forfeiture includes, but is not limited to, the following
property:

a. A sum of money of at least $62,854.53 representing the proceeds
HOUMAN MOTII obtained from the offenses charged in count one.

(All in accordance with Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(7); and Title 2 1
United States Code, Section 853(p).) :



Case 2:19-cr-00071-MSD-LRL Document 1 Filed 05/03/19 Page 5 of 5 PagelD# 5

G. ZACHARY TERWILLIGER
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

C'-_-_"'

By: W\‘
miza!@lsz5
Virginia Bar No. 91982

Assistant United States Attorney

Attorney for the United States

United States Attorney’s Office

101 West Main Street, Suite 8000

Norfolk, VA 23510

Office Number: (757) 441-6331

Fax Number: (757) 441-6689

E-Mail Address: Elizabeth. Yusi@usdoj.gov




Case 2;19-cr-00071-MSD-LRL R%%:xrae[(ﬁf)l

JS$ 45 (11/2002)

Filed 05/03/19 Page 1 of 1 PagelD# 6

U.S. District Court

Criminal Case Cover Sheet

;Place of Offense: o

‘County/Parish:

Criminal Complaint.

ame Defendant;

__Under Seal: Yes 0 No

'Judge Assigned: ~ M\J\S
‘Criminal Number: ;2 lo\Qﬁ’[ I

_mi\eggel‘gﬁrldapt' Houman Mot

X

Magistrate Judge Case Number;

{Arraignment Date:

Search Warrant Case Number: °
: . R20/R 40 from Districtof ____ . —_—
Defendant Informatmn'
Ju ile: Yes [ No X I‘BI#
. Defendant Name: HOUMAN MOTII - Alias Name(s): !
(Address: Virginia Beach, Virgina. :
Birth Date: 1982 Sy o Sex: M Race: iNationality: Placeaf Birth:
o Weight:  Hair: _Eyes: 5“"‘5” 3“905' S —
Interpreter: Yes L1 No® List Language and/or dialect: - I
Location Stams'
Am:st Date: . . R - _ﬁ:____‘
i:l Alrcady in Fedeml C‘u:\mdy as of‘ _im:_ i
] Already in State Custody o WDO_H Iirctndl RLEC%“ e _ Not iz}mgljsfgdy . o
| [:l Arrest Warrant Requested ’Br ugitive = Summons Requested |
DArresl demt Pcndmg i [} Dot Sought i [0 Bond
Defense anwe&.lafm'mag%u b msese——— . _
Name: James Br_occoletti chour__t Appointed
- Address: 6663 Stoney Point South | |
! Norfolk, VA 23502 Retained L i
| Telephone: 757-466-0750 ) - DPublic Defender _ |
COffice of Federal Pubilc IJefmdcr shou]d not bu appomfed due to conﬂlct of'i mteru.t

CICIA attorney:

should not be appointed due to conflict of interest 5

U.» Attornev Infnrmahon

AUSA Elizabeth M. Yusi i

. R lbkphonc No. 757-441-6331
Complainant Afzencv. Addru;s & Phone Number or Person & Title:

Bar#: 91982

DCI‘S 200 Granby Sueut §u1te4]” Nm‘fo]k VA 7351(} 757-963-5’»’ 2

U.S C. (‘lt'ltu)m'

_ Code/Section Desc: lptmn of

sl | 18USC§1347
Set2 i

R ! Forfeiture

fense Charged

Health Care Fraud

- Count(s) | C«lpllﬂilrclﬂllv/Ml‘)d/l’ethh

b1

 Felony




